
 

 
                                  

 
 

AGENDA 

 

 

For a meeting of the 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
to be held on 

THURSDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2014 
at 

2.00 PM 
in the 

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ 

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

 

Committee 
Members: 

Councillor Jean Bevan, Councillor Dr Peter Moseley (Vice-
Chairman), Councillor Trevor Scott, Councillor Rob Shorrock, 
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman), Councillor Jeff Thompson 
and Councillor Martin Wilkins 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 406152 
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below. 
 

1. MEMBERSHIP 
 

 The Committee to be notified of any substitute members. 

  
2. APOLOGIES 

 
  
3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

 
 Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

  
4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 SEPTEMBER 2014 

 
  
5. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
  



6. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2013/14 
 

 External Audit to present the Annual Audit Letter 2013/14. (Enclosure) 

  
7. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND FOLLOW-UP REPORT 

 
 Report number HOF301 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 

  
8. TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW 

 
 Report number HOF297 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 

  
9. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - PROPOSED CHANGES 

 
 Report number HOF304 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 

  
10. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

 
 Report number HOF302 by the Head of Finance. (Enclosure) 

  
11. HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 

 
 Report number ENV620 by the Environmental Health Services Manager. 

 (Enclosure) 

  
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
 

  
 



 

MINUTES 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 25 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 

  
Councillor Jean Bevan 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley (Vice-
Chairman) 
Councillor Trevor Scott 
 

Councillor Rob Shorrock 
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Jeff Thompson 
 

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS 

 
Strategic Director, Corporate Focus 
(Daren Turner) 
Head of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Executive Manager, Corporate (Lucy 
Youles) - minute item 26 only 
Waste and Recycling Service Manager 
(Keith Rowe) – minute item 23 only 
Financial Accountant Team Leader (Amy 
Oliver) 
Senior Financial Accountant (Gill 
Goddard) – to minute 22 
Management Accountant Team Leader 
(Claire Roberts) 
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott) 
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey) 

Councillor Mike Taylor (Portfolio Holder: 
Strategic Resources – Well Run Council) 
 
EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 
Tony Crawley – Director, KPMG 
Mike Norman – Manager, KPMG 
Niall Davidson Petch – Assistant 
Manager, KPMG 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

Rob Barnett – Senior Manager, Baker 
Tilly 
Alan Hetherington – Internal Auditor, 
Baker Tilly 
 

 

 
 

18. APOLOGIES 

 
 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Wilkins. 
  

19. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

 
 No interests were disclosed. 
  

Agenda Item 4



2 

20. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 JULY 2014 

 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2014 were proposed, seconded 

and agreed as a correct record subject to noting that the role of District Auditor 
mentioned on page 1 of the minutes ceased to exist with the introduction of the 
new audit arrangements. 

  

21. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2013/14 

 
 Representatives from KPMG presented and summarised key messages from 

the Annual Governance Report 2013/14. Members noted that external audit 
anticipated issuing an unqualified audit opinion by 30 September 2014. This 
could only be issued following receipt of a signed management representation 
letter and the sign-off of the Statement of Accounts 2013/14. As part of the 
audit of the authority’s financial statements, KPMG did not identify any material 
adjustments however a small number of presentational adjustments were 
required to ensure compliance with the ‘Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14’. 
 
External Audit also reported that the Annual Governance Statement was 
compliant with ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A 
Framework’, which was published by CIPFA/SOLACE and that it was not 
misleading or inconsistent with information received as part of the audit of 
financial statements. The Committee was asked to approve this with the 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
The External Audit Plan 2013/14 that was presented to the Committee in March 
2014 identified two key audit risk areas: the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Triennial Valuation and Business Rate Retention. The Audit tested 
controls and procedures in relation to these risks and did not identify any 
issues. 
 
In accordance with ISA 260, KPMG reported on qualitative aspects of the 
authority’s accounting practices and financial reporting, together with the 
process for preparing the accounts and support for the audit. KPMG found that 
the authority had maintained strong financial reporting processes and 
considered the accounting practices appropriate. A complete set of draft 
accounts was received on 20 June 2014, the quality of working papers was 
good and officers responded to queries in a reasonable time. The report also 
included KPMG’s declaration of independence and objectivity (also a 
requirement of ISA 260). 
 
External Audit was also required to give an opinion on two value for money 
criteria around securing financial resilience and securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. KPMG concluded that the authority had made proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources and anticipated issuing an unqualified opinion to this end. 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to a government proposal that would bring the 
timetable for the production of accounts from 2017/18 to the end of May with 



3 

completion of the audit due by the end July. If the government did proceed with 
this proposal, working priorities and practices would need to change to ensure 
work was completed on time. Committee members expressed concerns about 
the impact such a change might have on the accuracy of the accounts and the 
potential resource implications. 
 
 The Committee congratulated the officers for their work and noted KPMG’s 
report. The Strategic Director, Corporate Focus also added his thanks. 

  

22. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2013/14 

 
 Decision 

 
Members of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 

1. Approve the revised Statement of Accounts 2013/14 
2. Note the commentary on the outcome of the audit work 
3. Approve the publication of the summary of accounts and that it be 

published on the Council’s website 
4. Approve the final Annual Governance Statement (considered on 22 

July 2014 subject to adjustments circulated) as an accurate 
summary of how the Council is run and approve its publication 
alongside the Statement of Accounts 

5. Approve the signing of the letter of representation. 
 
The Head of Finance presented report number HOF285 on the Statement of 
Accounts 2013/14. An addendum had been circulated to Committee members, 
which gave a summary of amendments made since the Committee had 
considered the draft document.  
 
The Senior Financial Accountant briefly explained the key amendments that 
had been made, all of which were explained fully either in report HOF285 or the 
summary of addendums document that was circulated at the meeting. 
 
Committee members noted the amendments that had been made and the 
recommendations in report number HOF285, together with the additional 
recommendations included on the summary of addendums document, were 
proposed, seconded and agreed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned between 14:31 and 14:37. 

  

23. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 
 Representatives from Internal Audit informed the Committee that nine reports 

had been finalised since the start of the financial year including one follow-up 
report. Of the eight completed reports (excluding the follow-up report), four had 
been given a green opinion (payroll and expenses, council tax, NNDR and 
corporate governance), three were given an amber/green assurance (data 
protection, purchase orders and creditors and planning enforcement) and one 
was given an amber/red assurance (waste and recycling). An ‘adequate 



4 

progress’ opinion was given in relation to the follow-up report. Across the audits 
31 recommendations were made (1 high risk, 10 medium risk and 20 low risk), 
of which 30 had been accepted by management.  
 
The report provided headline findings for each audit, which Mr Barnett 
summarised, together with any medium and high risk recommendations that 
were raised, officer comments and an implementation deadline and the 
responsible officer. 
 
The Waste and Recycling Service Manager was invited to comment on the 
Waste and Recycling Inventory/Stock Audit. Ten recommendations had been 
raised as a result of the audit (five medium risk and five low risk), nine of which 
had been agreed by management. The service manager explained that the 
recommendations relating to excess stock, signing-out of stock, stock takes 
and maintenance of management records would be implemented by the agreed 
dates.  
 
The recommendation that related to keeping workshop stock in an area that 
could only be accessed by supervising staff and issued to the requesting staff 
member had not been agreed because of the arrangement of the workshop 
and the staffing levels within the workshop. Instead, it had been proposed that 
monthly stock checks would take place with reconciliation of records. In the 
event anomalies were identified, internal audit’s recommendation would be re-
considered. Mr Barnett stated that subject to the other controls being 
introduced and the caveat that the recommendation would be reconsidered in 
the event of any anomalies, he was comfortable with this approach. 
 
Committee members also clarified arrangements for stock management of 
sundry goods and asked questions about the proposed arrangements for stock 
taking. It was suggested that the frequency of stock-takes should be dependent 
on the value of the items. The high turnover in some items was also recognised 
(e.g. cleaning products). 
 
Some discussion ensued around recommendations raised through the audit of 
Data Protection arrangements and rollout of training to all staff. The audit had 
revealed that some staff, including cleaning staff, had not received refresher 
training. While members of the Committee acknowledged that the onus should 
be placed on officers to ensure the secure storage of information, there was 
recognition that it was appropriate to ensure all staff received refresher training. 
 
Recommendations around purchase orders and creditors highlighted instances 
when purchase orders had been raised following receipt of invoices. There was 
an acknowledgement that in some instances it was not possible to raise orders 
(e.g. in relation to utility bills). For routine orders with regular creditors, 
Councillors suggested a system of call-off orders. Officers added that an 
exemption list of items where purchase orders could not be raised was being 
developed. Members were also assured that any areas where this tended to 
happen could be identified and the requirement to have a purchase order prior 
to invoicing pushed corporately. This issue would be reconsidered as part of 
the internal audit follow-up report. 



5 

 
Committee members considered the recommendations that related to planning 
enforcement. The recommendation predominantly related to ensuring all 
supporting documentation was included in files and that they were 
appropriately closed-down. The second recommendation related to the 
enforcement action plan which was designed to reduce the number of open 
enforcement case files. Officers reported that the situation had improved 
significantly with a 70% reduction in open files. Councillors identified that this 
was a result of the direct targeting of resources and ensuring file closures were 
properly completed. Members were concerned that the situation should not 
recur but were assured that the working practices now in operation should 
prevent this. 
 
Brief consideration was also given to the recommendations relating to the 
payroll and expenses audit. Officers explained that supporting documents for 
claims were checked locally by service managers as part of the approval 
process; following checks individuals had not retained copies of those receipts 
so there was no documentation to support follow-up activity. 
 
Members of the Committee noted the report. 

  

24. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 

 
 Decision 

 
To note and approve the contents of the annual report on treasury 
management activity for 2013/14. 
 
The Head of Finance presented HOF290, which was the annual report on 
treasury management activity and the actual prudential and treasury indicators 
for 2013/14. The Committee was provided with an overview of national 
economic factors and an explanation of how they had impacted on the 
Council’s treasury management activity. 
 
During the year the Council experienced short-term fixed-term investment rates 
which ranged from 0.5% to 1.10%. At the end of 2013/14 the Council had total 
investments of approximately £34m and a net borrowing position of 
approximately £82m. 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy had been approved by Council on 1 March 
2013 and subsequently updated by the Governance and Audit Committee to 
enable more information sources to be taken into account when selecting 
counterparties to invest with and enable diversification while providing security 
and minimising risk. 
 
In respect of debt management activity in 2013/14, the Council had £113m 
long-term debt (of which £112m related to the self-financing and the Housing 
Revenue Account and £1m to Public Works Loan Boards loans) and £3.7m 
short-term debt outstanding. 
 



6 

Over the period of the report no long-term fixed-term deposits were made. The 
average rate of interests achieved on the portfolio was 0.74%. 
 
Committee members were also assured that the prudential and treasury 
indicators for the period had been met. 
 
In response to a question on benchmarking, officers explained that the 
authority was part of the East Midlands benchmarking club. They added that 
the exercise was useful to a point however it could not provide an exact like-for-
like comparison because of differing organisational policies and risk appetite. 
 
The Committee noted the report. 

  

25. COUNTER-FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 

 
 Decision 

 
The Governance and Audit Committee notes the Counter Fraud Annual 
Report 2013/14 and approves the action plan. 
 
The Head of Finance presented report number HOF286, on the Counter Fraud 
Annual Report 2013/14 and action plan. The report also summarised the 
results of national initiatives and looked at future arrangements following the 
abolition of the Audit Commission in 2015 and the closure of the National Fraud 
Authority in March 2014. 
 
The report also provided a summary of Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Support fraud performance. This summarised the number of referrals and the 
action taken by the authority’s fraud investigators.  
 
Members were also informed that during 2013/14 seven whistle-blowing 
concerns were reported and investigated, with improvements to systems and 
controls being implemented. Following reports in 2012/13 about an increase in 
suspicious insurance claims, the Council actively worked with its insurers to 
review any claims it considered suspicious and investigated by its dedicated 
Claims Investigation Unit. 
 
During November 2013 the Council ran a fraud awareness-raising campaign for 
staff and rolled-out a counter fraud and corruption e-learning package as part of 
the corporate training programme. 
 
Members noted planned changes to fraud investigation; from 2014 the 
Council’s resources for fraud investigation would transfer to the Department of 
Works and Pensions as the government created a single fraud investigation 
service. When this happened the authority would need to review its 
arrangements to make sure investigation mechanisms were in place for those 
areas not covered by the government’s service. 
 
Councillors asked about the number of whistle-blowing reports in relation to 
2012/13 and they were advised that numbers were comparable. A further 



7 

question was asked about the National Fraud initiative which matched data 
within public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud; 1,985 
matches were identified for investigation following the exercise. Matches were 
given a quality assurance rating to help local authorities prioritise their 
investigation. 
 
The External Audit Director highlighted a potential future financial risk following 
the introduction of Universal Credit in respect of the reclamation of monies lost 
as a result of fraud. 
 
The Committee noted the report and approved the action plan. 

  

26. OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER 2013/14 

 
 Decision: 

 
To note the contents of the Ombudsman Annual Review letter for the 
period 1 April 2014 to the 31 March 2014 and to feedback to the 
Ombudsman about the presentation of information and being able to 
distinguish complaints from queries. 
 
The Committee noted LDS135, which incorporated the Ombudsman Annual 
Report letter for 2013/14. The Ombudsman had received 16 complaints and 
enquiries about the Council, (including premature complaints). During the 
reporting period 7 complaints were referred to the Council for local resolution, 
of those, 3 were subsequently referred to the Ombudsman having completed 
the Council’s complaints procedure. Of the three complaints investigated by the 
Ombudsman, no findings of fault were found. 
 
In discussing the report, members commented that the new way in which 
information was presented made year-on-year comparison difficult. They added 
that the number of complaints could not be distinguished from the number of 
enquiries. It was suggested that this feedback should be presented to the 
Ombudsman. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 

  

27. CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
 The meeting was closed at 15:46. 
  

 



Annual Audit Letter 

2013/14

South Kesteven District Council 

October 2014

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6



1© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 

document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Contents

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their 

individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This 

summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available 

on the Audit Commission’s website at www.auditcommission.gov.uk.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted 

in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Tony Crawley, the appointed engagement lead to the 

Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to 

trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your 

complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit 

Commission,  3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 0303 4448 

330.

The contacts at KPMG 

in connection with this 

report are:

Tony Crawley

Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0116 256 6067

tony.crawley@kpmg.co.uk

Mike Norman

Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3554

michael.norman@kpmg.co.uk

Niall Davidson Petch

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3564 

niall.davidsonpetch@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Report sections

Headlines 2

Appendices

1. Summary of reports issued

2. Audit fees

3

4



2© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 

document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Section one

Headlines

This report summarises the 

key findings from our 

2013/14 audit of South 

Kesteven District Council 

(the Authority). 

Although this letter is 

addressed to the Members 

of the Authority, it is also 

intended to communicate 

these issues to key external 

stakeholders, including 

members of the public.  

Our audit covers the audit of 

the Authority’s 2013/14 

financial statements and the 

2013/14 VFM conclusion.

All the issues in this letter 

have been previously 

reported. The detailed 

findings are contained in the 

reports we have listed in 

Appendix 1.

VFM conclusion We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for

2013/14 on 26 September 2014. This means we are satisfied that you have proper arrangements for securing

financial resilience and challenging how you secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

To arrive at our conclusion we looked at your financial governance, financial planning and financial control processes,

as well as how you are prioritising resources and improving efficiency and productivity.

VFM risk areas Our initial risk assessment took into account the Authority’s key business risks which are relevant to our VFM

conclusion. We specifically considered the actions being taken by the Authority to achieve the savings identified as

required within the Medium Term Financial Strategy, with the predicted funding gap increasing from £0.9m in 2015/16

to £1.8m in 2017/18. The Authority was making good progress in developing the actions required to deliver the

longer term savings required by the Strategy. We were satisfied that sufficient work in relation to this risk was being

carried out by the Authority to mitigate the audit risks for our VFM conclusion. We concluded that we did not need to

carry out any specific additional work ourselves.

Audit opinion We issued an unqualified opinion on your financial statements on 26 September 2014. This means that we believe

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of its expenditure and

income for the year.

Financial statements 

audit

We reported the significant matters arising from the financial statements audit to the Governance and Audit

Committee in our Report to those Charged with Governance. We did not need to report any significant audit

differences to the Committee, and the quality of the accounts and supporting working papers was good.

Annual Governance 

Statement

We reviewed your Annual Governance Statement and concluded that it was consistent with our understanding.

Whole of Government 

Accounts

We carried out the mandated audit work on the consolidation pack which the Authority prepared to support the

production of Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury. We did not need to report any inconsistencies

between the Authority’s audited accounts and the consolidation pack to the National Audit Office.

Certificate We issued our certificate on 26 September 2014.

The certificate confirms that we have concluded the audit for 2013/14 in accordance with the requirements of the

Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice.

Audit fee Our proposed fee for 2013/14 is £63,030, excluding VAT (£62,130 in 2012/13). Further detail is contained in 

Appendix 2.



3© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 

document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices

Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued

This appendix summarises 

the reports we issued since 

our last Annual Audit Letter.

2014

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

Audit Fee Letter (April 2014)

The Audit Fee Letter set out the proposed audit 

work and draft fee for the 2014/15 financial year. 

Auditor’s Report (September 2014)

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on 

the financial statements, our VFM conclusion and 

our certificate. Annual Audit Letter (October 2014)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the 

results of our audit for 2013/14.

External Audit Plan (February 2014)

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the 

audit of the Authority’s financial statements and to 

work to support the VFM conclusion. 

Certification of Grants and Returns           

(January 2014)

This report on summarised the outcome of our 

certification work on the Authority’s 2012/13 grants 

and returns.

Report to Those Charged with Governance 

(September 2014)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance 

summarised the results of our audit work for 

2013/14 including key issues and recommendations 

raised as a result of our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations 

required under auditing standards as part of this 

report.



4© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. This 

document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices

Appendix 2: Audit fees

To ensure openness between KPMG and your Governance and Audit Committee about the extent of our fee relationship with you, we have 

summarised the outturn against the 2013/14 planned audit fee.

External audit

Our proposed final fee for the 2013/14 audit of the Authority is  £63,030 (the 2012/13 actual fee was £62,130). 

The final proposed fee compares to a planned fee of £62,130, which is the scale fee set by the Audit Commission. The reason for this 

variance is a £900 fee for the additional work required this year on agreeing local business rates income, following the changes introduced 

nationally. In previous years we have been able to rely on the work certifying the year end NNDR3 return but this is no longer in place and 

the Authority will not therefore be charged a certification fee for that work. The fee for the certification work in 2012/13 was £1,180. 

Management has agreed the £900 additional fee and the request is now subject to final determination by the Audit Commission.

Certification of grants and returns

Our grants work is still ongoing and the fee will be confirmed through our report on the Certification of Grants and Returns 2013/14 which 

we are due to issue in January 2015.

Other services

We have not carried out or charged for any other services which are not related to our responsibilities under Audit Commission's Code of 

Audit Practice.

This appendix provides 

information on our final fees 

for 2013/14.



© 2014 KPMG LLP, a UK public limited liability partnership and a member firm 

of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 

International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and ‘cutting through complexity’ are registered 

trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG 

International).



 Page 1

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF:    HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO:   HOF301 
 
DATE:       4 December 2014 
 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report: 
1 September 2014 – 18 November 2014 

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

None 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Governance and Communication Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Paul Carpenter 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles 
Head of Finance 
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk 
Tel: (01476) 406210 

INITIAL IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below: 
 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 
 
No 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee is requested to review and note the contents of 
the attached progress report that has been prepared by the internal auditors Baker 
Tilly. 
  
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
This is the second in a series of regular in-year progress reports summarising the 
results of work undertaken by the internal audit service. This report covers the period 1 
September to 18 November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7



 Page 2

3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
Introduction and Background 
 
Under the Local Government Act 1972 (s151) and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations, the Council has a responsibility to maintain an adequate and effective 
internal audit service. At South Kesteven the internal audit service is provided by 
Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP.  
 
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the internal audit service 
provides assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s governance, 
risk management and control arrangements. The opinion provided within individual 
reports issued to management contributes towards an annual audit opinion that forms 
part of the framework of assurances that informs the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 
Summary of Work Undertaken from 1 September to 18 November 2014 
 
The internal audit plan for 2014/15 was approved by this Committee on 13 March 2014 
and this report provides details of progress against the plan – see Appendix A – 
accompanying report prepared by Baker Tilly. 
 
During the period 1 September to 18 November 2014 six reports have been finalised 
and two assignments are being completed, ie work in progress. A Follow Up audit has 
also been undertaken and this is attached as Appendix B.  A representative from 
Baker Tilly will be present at the meeting in order to present and respond to any 
questions raised by members in relation to the key findings in their reports. 
 

Audited Area 
Assurance/ 

Opinion 

Number of Recommendations 

H
ig

h
 

M
e
d

iu
m

 

L
o

w
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
c
c
e
p

te
d

 b
y
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

Planned Cyclical Maintenance 
and Capital Programme  

Amber/Green 0 2 3 5 5 

Section 106 Amber/Green 0 2 3 5 5 

Income and Debtors  Green 0 2 1 3 3 

Pool Cars Green 0 1 4 5 5 

Asset Management Plan Green 0 2 2 4 4 

Contract Management – 
Ground & Tree Maintenance 

Amber/Green 1 1 3 5 5 

Total 1 10 16 27 27 

% 4 37 59 100 97 

 

Follow Up 
Good 

Progress 
0 3 0 3 3 

 
 



 Page 3

Key Points to Note 
 
Of the six audits completed (excluding the Follow Up of previous recommendations), a 
total of 27 new recommendations have been raised and accepted by management. 
Only one recommendation was classified as high risk (4%). This arose during the audit 
of Contract Management – Ground & Tree Maintenance which identified that only 
those contractors recorded on the approved contractors register should be used for 
the completion of additional works.  Where additional works are required, orders 
should be raised and appropriately authorised prior to works being carried out in all 
instances.   
 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/budget, 
people, land/property etc. 
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA 
         QUALITY) 
 
None 
 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
None 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
These are included in the report. 
 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
Those charged with governance are asked to review the contents of the attached 
report which summarises the work undertaken by the internal auditors. 
 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER 
 
None 
 
12.     APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Progress Report prepared by Baker Tilly 
Appendix B – Follow Up Report prepared by Baker Tilly  



 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Governance &Audit Committee Meeting: 4 December 2014 

 

 



South Kesteven District Council | 1 

 

 

Introduction 

The internal audit plan for 2014/15 was approved by the Governance & Audit Committee on 13 March 2014. 

This report provides an update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 

We have finalised seven reports relating to the 2014/15 audit plan since the previous committee meeting. 

 

Final Reports Issued 

Assignment 

Reports considered today are shown in 
bold & italics 

Status Opinion 

Recommendations           
Agreed (by priority) 

   High        Medium      Low  

 

Total 

 

Agreed 

 

Current Reports 

Planned Cyclical Maintenance 
and Capital Programme  

Final AMBER 
GREEN 

0 2 3 5 5 

Section 106 Final 
AMBER 
GREEN 

0 2 3 5 5 

Contract Management – Ground 
& Tree Maintenance 

Final 
AMBER 
GREEN 

1 1 3 5 5 

Income and Debtors  Final GREEN 0 2 1 3 3 

Pool Cars  Final GREEN 0 1 4 5 5 

Asset Management Plan Final GREEN 0 2 2 4 4 

Follow Up 2* FINAL 
GOOD 

PROGRESS 
0 3 0 3 3 

*being presented as a separate agenda item. 

 

Report already presented to Committee 

Follow Up 1  Final 
ADEQUATE 
PROGRESS 

0 9 1 10 10 

Waste and Recycling – Inventory/ 
Stock 

Final AMBER RED 0 5 5 10 9 

Data Protection Final 
AMBER 
GREEN 

0 2 4 6 6 

Purchase Orders & Creditors Final 
AMBER 
GREEN 

1 0 3 4 4 

Planning Enforcement Final 
AMBER 
GREEN 

0 2 2 4 4 

Payroll & Expenses Final GREEN 0 1 2 3 3 

Council Tax Final GREEN 0 0 2 2 2 

NNDR Final GREEN 0 0 2 2 2 

Corporate Governance Final GREEN 0 0 0 0 0 

 

 



 

 
 

 

Changes to the Plan: 

• It has been proposed to defer the Partnership audit to allow further time to review the current working 

arrangements of the existing partnerships.  It is expected that the audit will now be undertaken as part 

of the 2015/16 audit plan. 

 

• To allow the implementation of the corporate redesign and new working arrangements to be 

embedded, it is recommended that the following audits are included in the audit plan for 2015/16. 

 

Ø Welfare Reform; and 

Ø Resident Involvement. 

 

• In response to management requests, we will be performing an advisory review in the coming period 

specifically the use of Ebay as a surplus assets disposal tool.  Management will be advised of the 

findings of this review upon completion in order to review and improve current working arrangements. 

Planning and Liaison: 

Fieldwork has been completed for the following reviews and draft reports will be issued to management 

shortly: 

• Disposal of Surplus Equipment via eBay; and 

• Contract Management. 

 

Internal Audit Performance 

Assignment Debrief date 
Draft report 

issued 

Management 
responses 
received 

Final report 
issued 

Planned Cyclical Maintenance and Capital 
Programme  19/08/14 29/08/14 30/09/14 30/09/14 

Section 106  07/10/14 15/10/14 20/10/14 21/10/14 

Contract Management – Ground & Tree 
Maintenance 

13/10/14 10/11/14 18/11/14 18/11/14 

Income and Debtors  12/09/14 26/09/14 05/11/14 05/11/14 

Pool Cars  11/07/14 25/07/14 10/10/14 10/10/14 

Asset Management Plan 24/10/14 06/11/14 14/11/14 14/11/14 

Follow Up 2 n/a 20/10/14 13/11/14 13/11/14 

Follow Up 1 n/a 30/05/14 12/06/14 12/06/14 

Waste and Recycling – Inventory/ Stock 11/07/14 24/07/14 20/08/14 20/08/14 

Data Protection 06/06/14 17/06/14 17/06/14 19/06/14 

Purchase Orders & Creditors 06/06/14 18/06/14 07/07/14 07/07/14 

Planning Enforcement 13/06/14 27/06/14 01/07/14 02/07/14 

Payroll & Expenses 26/06/14 11/07/14 29/07/14 30/07/14 

Council Tax 20/06/14 02/07/14 12/08/14 13/08/14 

NNDR 20/06/14 02/07/14 12/08/14 13/08/14 

Corporate Governance 04/07/14 17/07/14 11/08/14 11/08/14 

 

  



 

 
 

 

Key Findings from Internal Audit Work  

Assignment: Planned Cyclical Maintenance and Capital 
Programme 

Opinion:  Amber-Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of Planned Cyclical Maintenance and Capital Programme was undertaken as part of the approved internal 
audit plan and resulted in two ‘Medium’ and three ‘Low’ risk recommendations being raised. All recommendations 
were accepted by management. 

The medium risk recommendations related to: 

• Full stock condition survey was last carried out in 2009 and there are currently no plans for another survey 
to be undertaken. 

• Information relating to the condition of the Council’s stock and those works completed is recorded on the 
Innovation Apex system and the Northgate system. The Stock Management Coordinator is notified of all 
works completed. For 6/12 properties sampled there were delays in notifying the Stock Management 
Coordinator of the works completed, these delays ranged from 2-3 months to 14-15 months after the works 
had been completed. 

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

Stock condition survey for each of the Council’s properties should be carried 
out in accordance to best practice. 

Management Comment: 

Stock condition survey for each of the Council properties will be carried out 
in accordance to best practice, following budget bid for the work. 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

The planned works carried out (including those notified via the bulk upload 
spreadsheet) should be notified to the Stock Management Coordinator in a 
timely manner.  

To ensure that all the works carried out have been notified to the Stock 
Management Co-coordinator, a regular reconciliation should be carried out 
of the works reported as completed to the works scheduled.  

Management Comment: 

The employment of Works Management software on Apex enables the 
team to automate the processing of work completions. All of the relevant 
items of Asset Register information can be updated using the automated 
processing.  

A reconciliation of the works reported as completed to the works scheduled, 
will be carried out by the Stock Condition Coordinators following the 
completion of each project.  

April 2015 
following 
budget 

bid 

 

November 
2014 

January 
2015 

 

Service Manager – 
Property Services 

(HRA) 

 

 

Service Manager – 
Property Services 

(HRA) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

Assignment: Section 106 Opinion:  Amber-Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of Section 106 was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit plan and resulted in two ‘Medium’ and 
three ‘Low’ risk recommendations being raised. All recommendations were accepted by management. 

The medium risk recommendations related to: 

• Testing of a sample of 19 planning applications where Section 106 Agreements had been signed between 
January 2011 and August 2014 found that in all cases the Legal Department had notified the S106 
Agreements to the Land Charges team on a timely basis, however recording on the Land Charges system 
was not considered timely. There were eight agreements which were registered between 2-6 months after 
being notified by the Legal Department. It was also noted that six agreements were yet to be registered on 
the Land Charges database (earliest being January 2014). 

• Monitoring reports are generated from the Section 106 database and are used to monitor when triggers 
may become live (i.e. dates of payments received, dates by which payments need to be expended). A 
review of the Monitoring Dates report, 19 S106 agreements were identified which should have been 
checked between June 2014 and September 2014. 

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

Upon receipt of notification of a Section 106 agreement from Legal Team, 
the Local Land Charges Register should be updated in a timely manner, 
ideally within one month of receipt.  

Management Comment: 

The updating of the Land Chargers register will be added to the procedure 
note for the s106 monitoring officer to complete.  

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

Monitoring of the Section 106 Agreements should be carried out in a timely 
manner each month by the Monitoring Officer.  

Management Comment: 

In reality, monitoring of the database takes place on a weekly basis, but 
monthly checks will be put in place which will culminate in an update report 
to the Portfolio Holder.  

December 
2014 

 

December 
2014 

 

 

Executive Manager, 
Development and 

Growth  

 

 

 

 

Executive Manager, 
Development and 

Growth  

 

 

  



 

 
 

 

Assignment: Contract Management – Ground & Tree  
Maintenance 

Opinion:  Amber-Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of Contract Management – Ground & Tree Maintenance was undertaken as part of the approved internal 
audit plan and resulted in one ‘High’, one ‘Medium’ and three ‘Low’ risk recommendations being raised. All 
recommendations were accepted by management. 

The high risk recommendation related to: 

• Contractors historically carrying out additional works are not recorded on the approved contractors register. 
For a sample of 15 invoices raised for additional works it was noted that five invoices related to two 
external contractors that were not on the approved contractors register. It was also noted that three order 
numbers had been raised following receipt of the invoice and one order consisted of five jobs, with only two 
of the jobs appropriately authorised. 

The medium risk recommendation related to: 

• Variation orders are not reviewed by an independent officer prior to issue to Glendale. Testing identified 
that the variation forms include the electronic signature of the Grounds Maintenance Supervisor, with all 
forms pre-signed, increasing the risk of variations being authorised without appropriate review. 

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – High Risk 

Only those contractors recorded on the approved contractors register 
should be used for the completion of additional works. 

Where additional works are required, orders should be raised and 
appropriately authorised prior to works being carried out in all instances. 

Management Comment: 

Where additional work is required, orders will be raised and processed prior 
to any work taking place. If out of hours, and the work is of an emergency 
nature, then the order will be raised and processed as soon as possible and 
following the works instruction. 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

All variation order forms should be completed and authorised by 
independent officers, with a record maintained of the officer completing the 
form and the officer authorising the variation. 

Management Comment: 

Electronic signatures removed. 

Any variation orders raised by individual officers are counter signed by 
another officer. 

November 
2014 

 

 

November 
2014 

 

 

Facilities Team 
Leader – Operations 

 

 

 

 

 

Facilities Team 
Leader - Operations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

Assignment: Income and Debtors Opinion:  Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of Income and Debtors was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit plan and resulted in two 
‘Medium’ and one ‘Low’ risk recommendation being raised. All recommendations were accepted by management. 

The medium risk recommendations related to: 

• A cash checklist is completed on a daily basis to ensure that a feed takes place from the cash receipting 
system to the sales ledger and the general ledger. Testing of a sample of 15 cash checklists identified that 
in each case the checklist had been completed by one member of staff and signed as reviewed by another 
member of staff.  However, it was noted that there were two items which had a constant difference on all 
the checklists tested (£6,147.94 on the “Cedar Miscellaneous Fund” and £16,635.09 on the “Cedar Fund”). 
Further review identified that these imbalance first occurred on 24 April 2014, but there were no notes on, 
or information attached to, the reconciliation to explain why they had occurred.  

• The Collection Officer will process credit notes based on instructions received from Service Managers. 
However, staff in departmental areas who have access to raise invoices also have access to create credit 
notes; consequently, credit notes can be raised for the full invoice amount without Service Manager 
approval, or knowledge. Out of a sample of 15 credit notes tested, documentation to support the raising 
and approval of six could not be provided; consequently there was no evidence of Service Manager 
approval.  

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

The difference on the daily cash checklists relating to the “Cedar 
Miscellaneous Fund” and the “Cedar Fund” should be investigated and 
resolved.  

Any future discrepancies identified should be investigated, and an 
explanation should be recorded on the cash checklist, with any relevant 
supporting documentation being attached.  

Management Comment: 

Agreed. Existing procedure will be tightened to ensure that all discrepancies 
are identified and investigated. They will be resolved immediately or an 
explanation provided as to why they cannot be resolved immediately. Any 
outstanding items will need to be monitored and corrected at the earliest 
opportunity.  

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

To ensure compliance with Financial Regulations, Service Managers should 
ensure that credit notes are only used to correct a factual inaccuracy or 
administrative error in the calculation and / or billing of the original debt.  

To ensure that this is consistently applied, it is recommended that all credit 
notes to cancel sales ledger invoices should be raised centrally.  

Access to process credit notes on the debtors system should be restricted 
to nominated staff, and a form, similar to the Authority to Raise an invoice 
form, should be used for requesting credit notes to be raised. This form will 
require approval by the relevant Service Manager before being processed.  

Management Comment: 

Service Managers will be reminded that credit notes should only be issued 
upon evidence of an incorrect charge being levied. It is not necessary to 
centralise the process of credit notes as this would be administratively 
burdensome but credit notes should be approved by the Service Manager 
prior to being processed.  

October 
2014 

 

 

 

November 
2014 

 

 

Revenues & Benefits 
Service Manager  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Finance 

 



 

 
 

 

Assignment: Pool Cars Opinion:  Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of Pool Cars was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit plan and resulted in one ‘Medium’ and 
four ‘Low’ risk recommendations being raised. All recommendations were accepted by management. 

The medium risk recommendation related to: 

• Following on from the previous Internal Audit of Pool Cars, we were informed that the Council is in the 
process of preparing a Driving at Work Policy, which will include a section on the pool car services run by 
the Council. The first part of this process was to develop and publish guidance documents for using pool 
cars, which are now in place. The Initial draft of the Driving at Work Policy was scheduled to be completed 
by the end of July 2014.  

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

The overarching Driving at Work Policy section on pool cars should be 
developed. 

Once approved the Policy should be issued to all staff through the Net 
Consent system to ensure that all staff acknowledge reading and accepting 
it.  

The policy should be reviewed bi-annually and updated as required.  

Management Comment: 

Ensure collaboration with other officers leading on the Driving at Work 
Policy.  

December 
2014 

 

 

Property 
Development 

Manager 

 

  



 

 
 

 

Assignment: Asset Management Plan Opinion:  Green 

 

Headline Findings: 

An audit of the Asset Management Plan was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit plan and resulted in 
two ‘Medium’ and two ‘Low’ risk recommendations being raised. All recommendations were accepted by 
management. 

The medium risk recommendations related to: 

• No reconciliation takes place between the asset register maintained by Property Development and the 
register maintained by Finance. 

• Testing identified two assets which were not included on the Flare when it was populated from the previous 
spreadsheet record and a further two assets recorded on the Logotech system, but not on the Flare 
system.  

Action Date Responsible Officer 

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

A reconciliation of the Flare and Logotech assets registers should be 
undertaken with immediate effect.  

Going forward, the two systems should be reconciled on a regular basis, 
(quarterly or bi-annually) to ensure asset details are correct for budget 
setting purposes and for year-end accounts. 

Management Comment: 

Reconciliation dates will be diarised with the data input officer.  

Recommendation – Medium Risk 

All the Council’s Assets (which are not included in the Housing Revenue 
Account) should be recorded on the Flare Asset Register.  

Management Comment: 

Work is ongoing to ensure all assets are captured in the data base with up 
to data information. 

December 
2014 

 

 

December 
2014 

 
 

Interim Asset and 
Facilities Manager  

 

 

 

 

Interim Asset and 
Facilities Manager 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and 

other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements 

should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute 

for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound 

system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that 

may exist.  Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set 

out herein.  Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to them. 

This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from 

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Council which obtains access to this 

report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Baker 

Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable 

for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise 

permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. 

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 

Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

© 2013 Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP 



 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Internal Audit Report (14.14/15) 

FINAL 

Follow Up of Previous Internal Audit Recommendations 

13 November 2014 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

Section Page 

1 Executive Summary 1 

2 Action Plan 3 

3 Findings and Recommendations 4 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made 11 

Appendix B: Data to Support our Opinion 12 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness      14 

 

Debrief meeting: n/a Auditors: Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Robert Barnett, Senior Manager 

Amjad Ali, Client Manager 

Alan Hetherington, Lead Internal Auditor 

George Thomas, Internal Auditor 

Officer Debriefed: - 

Draft report issued: 20 October 2014 

Responses received: 13 November 2014 Client sponsor: Richard Wyles, Head of Finance 

Final report issued: 13 November 2014 Distribution: Richard Wyles, Head of Finance 

Claire Roberts, Management Accountant Team 
Leader 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

As a practicing member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its 
ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-
guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not 
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, 
or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial 
practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work 
should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to 
identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the 
purposes set out herein. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have 
agreed to state to them. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party 
wishing to acquire any rights from Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any party other 
than the Council which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its 
own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in 
respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is 
caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as 
otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. 

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th 
floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

© 2013 Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

1 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2014/15 we have undertaken a review to follow up 
progress made by South Kesteven District Council to implement previous internal audit 
recommendations. 

Recommendations with dates for implementation not yet due will be followed up later in the year. 

At management’s request, we have only followed up those recommendations classified as High and 
Medium risk. Recommendations categorised as Low risk are to be followed up separately by Council 
staff. It was also agreed that recommendations made in ‘Advisory’ reviews would not be followed up. 

The audits considered as part of the follow up review were: 

· 16.13/14 Planning 

· 21.13/14 Members Allowances and Expenses 

· 23.13/14 Leases 

· 30.13/14 Allocations and Lettings (including Void Management) 

· 31.13/14 Information Security Management System (ISMS) 

· 1.14/15 Follow Up (May 2014) 

o Car Park Enforcement 
o Consultation & Communication 
o Flexible Working Arrangements 
o Data Security 

The following Advisory review was excluded from the follow-up: 

· 19.13/14 Staff Engagement and Communication 

The recommendations considered in this review comprised 14 ‘medium’ recommendations. 

Staff members responsible for the implementation of recommendations were interviewed to determine the 
status of agreed actions. Where appropriate, audit testing has been completed to assess the level of 
compliance with this status and the controls in place. 

 

1.2 Conclusion 

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our 
definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has 
demonstrated good progress in implementing actions agreed to address internal audit 
recommendations. 

We have reiterated recommendations where these have not yet been implemented. In addition, we 
have made new recommendations where appropriate; these are detailed in the action plan. 

1.3 Limitations to the Scope of the Audit 

This review only covered audit recommendations previously made and did not review the whole control 
framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and 
control framework of those areas. 

The follow up will only cover High and Medium recommendations made in the identified reports. 

We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing 
assurance on the entire risk and control framework of these areas. 

Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 
implemented or controls enhanced. 

Our work does not provide any guarantee or absolute assurance against material errors, loss or fraud. 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

2 

1.4 Recommendation Tracking 

Recommendation tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and governance processes. It 
provides management with a method to record the implementation status of recommendations made by 
assurance providers, whilst allowing the Audit Committee to monitor actions taken by management. 

Recommendation tracking is undertaken by South Kesteven District Council’s management on a regular 
basis, with an update provided to the Audit Committee at each meeting. As part of our Follow-up review, 
we have verified this information and completed audit testing to confirm the level of implementation stated 
and compliance with controls. 

1.5 Status of Recommendations Followed Up 

The pie chart below provides an overview of the status of recommendations that have been followed up 
as part of this review. 

 

 

The bar chart below provides an overview of the status of recommendations that have been followed up 
as part of this review, grouped according to audit area: 

 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

3 

2 Action Plan 
The priority of the recommendations made is as follows: 

Priority: Description: 

High 

Recommendations are prioritised to reflect our assessment of risk associated with the control weaknesses. Medium 

Low 

Suggestion These are not formal recommendations that impact our overall opinion, but used to highlight a suggestion or idea that management may 
want to consider. 

 

Ref Recommendation Categorisation Accepted 
Y/N 

Management Comment Implementation 
Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

 16.13/14 Planning 

3.1.2 The policy on not providing advice over the 
telephone should be formally documented. 

All contact should be logged on the APAS 
system when made, including records of 
telephone conversations. 

Medium Y All staff will be emailed to clarify the 
procedure for giving phone advice. 

 

All advice will be logged. 

December 2014 Executive 
Manager 

Development and 
Growth 

3.1.3 On a monthly basis reconciliation should 
be undertaken between the two systems to 
identify any discrepancies. The 
reconciliations should be signed by the 
preparer and independently reviewed. 

Medium Y The reconciliations will take place as part 
of the monthly finance meetings. 

December 2014 Executive 
Manager 

Development and 
Growth 

 1.14/15 Follow Up (May 2014) 

3.6.1 7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 

Agreed scheduled patrol routes should be 
drawn up by APCOA and reviewed and 
agreed by the Council. 

Spot checks should be undertaken by 
Council staff to ensure APCOA are 
complying with the agreement. 

Medium Y A daily email from APCOA is received 
which details the CEO deployment for that 
day, along with details of any machine 
faults.  These deployment details will now 
be collated into a file from which we can 
monitor contract compliance and also 
forecast CEO requirements. 

Implemented Team Leader 
Operations 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

4 

3 Findings and Recommendations 
Each recommendation followed up has been categorised in line with the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire recommendation has been fully implemented. 

2 The recommendation has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The recommendation has not been implemented. 

4 The recommendation has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

5 The agreed date for implementing the recommendation has not yet been reached. 

 

3.1 16.13/14 PLANNING FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.1.1 Fees for all applications should be accurately 
charged based on the approved fees list. Fees 
due and collected should be independently 
reviewed for accuracy and authorised prior to 
collection. 

Medium March 2014 Team Leaders 1 Implemented. 

Testing of a sample of five planning applications 
found that all were charged at the correct rate. 

3.1.2 a) Staff should ensure that adequate evidence is 
retained on the system to support those cases 
where advice started prior to April 2013. 

b) All contact should be logged on the APAS 
system when made, including informal phone 
advice and should be categorised separately to 
pre-planning advice which attracts a charge. 

c) The Council should consider its policy on 
advice provided over the phone and consider 
introducing formal guidelines on when the 
questions being asked and the advice being 
given should attract a fee based on the amount of 
time spent providing such advice. 

Medium March 2014 

 
 

January 2014 

 

 
 

January 2014 

Team Leaders 

 
 

Team Leaders 

 

 
 

Service 
Manager 

2 Partially Implemented. 

With the planning approval issued for the 
Southern quarter redevelopment, part a) of the 
recommendation is now superseded. 

A policy is now in place amongst staff not issue 
advice over the telephone, however, this is not in 
writing. 

We were also informed that if informal advice is 
given over the telephone then this is still not 
always recorded on APAS. 

Revised recommendation made. 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

5 

3.1 16.13/14 PLANNING FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.1.3 a) The difference in income identified between 
the APAS system and the General Ledger should 
be investigated and rectified immediately. 

b) On a monthly basis a reconciliation should be 
undertaken between the two systems to identify 
any discrepancies. The reconciliations should be 
signed by the preparer and independently 
reviewed. 

Medium December 
2013 

Service 
Manager 

2 Partially Implemented. 

The difference in income identified between the 
APAS system and the General Ledger was 
investigated in December 2013 and rectified. 

However, after discussions with the Finance staff 
and Service Managers, it was established that 
the monthly reconciliations between the APAS 
system and the General Ledger are not being 
undertaken. 

Revised recommendation made. 

 

3.2 21.13/14 MEMBERS ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.2.1 a) Members should ensure that journeys claimed 
are in accordance to the Members Allowance 
Scheme set out in the Council’s Constitution and 
HMRC rules. 

b) The purpose of the journey should be clearly 
recorded on the claim form and post code of 
where the journey started from and the postcode 
of the destination is recorded on the claim forms. 

c) Members should ensure that receipts for 
business expenses incurred are submitted with 
the expense claims. 

Medium 28 February 
2014 

Head of Legal 
and 

Democratic 
Service 

1 Testing of a sample of eight Members’ expense 
claims found that: 

· Journeys claimed were in accordance with 
the Members Allowance Scheme. 

· The purpose of the journey was recorded 
on every expense form. 

· Where necessary, receipts were attached 
to support amounts claimed. 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

6 

3.3 23.13/14 LEASES FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.3.1 To ensure that the start dates and end dates 
recorded on the database are accurate, all dates 
recorded on the database should be checked 
against the leases held in the CPack’s. 

Medium 31 March 
2014. 

Head of 
Property 

Development 

1 Implemented. 

Details of five leases were reviewed on screen. 
This identified that start and end dates recorded 
agreed to those recorded on the corresponding 
leases in the CPacks. 

3.3.2 a) Once the accuracy and completeness checks 
have been completed on the Council’s database 
as recommended in recommendation three, the 
Council should provide Hodgson Elkington with 
up to date details for all the leases managed by 
Hodgson Elkington. 

b) The Council should review Hodgson 
Elkington's database at each management 
meeting to identify any discrepancies or errors 
between the records maintained by Hodgson 
Elkington and those maintained by the Council; 
these should then be investigated and rectified. 

c) To enable the lease management process to 
be monitored effectively monthly meetings should 
be held with Hodgson Elkington. As part of the 
monitoring arrangements, the Council should 
request Hodgson Elkington to provide a 
Managing Agents report for each meeting. This 
report should provide a written update on the 
progress made on the management of leases up 
to the date of the meeting. This report should also 
include details of leases that have expired). A 
copy of this report should be held on file by the 
Council with the minutes of the meeting. 

Medium 31 March 
2014 

Interim Asset 
and Facilities 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Quarterly meetings take place between Estates 
staff and Hodgson Elkington. 

Review of minutes for the meetings in June and 
August 2014 confirmed that discrepancies 
between premises / lease listings are discussed. 

Managing Agent reports are presented to the 
Council at each meeting which is used to 
highlight any issues and potential future actions 
required. 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

7 

3.4 30.13/14 ALLOCATIONS AND LETTINGS (INCLUDING VOID MANAGEMENT) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.4.1 Errors identified should be highlighted to Housing 
staff and they should be reminded to ensure that 
all documents are fully completed, signed and all 
evidence is kept on the lettings file. 

Medium 3rd February 
2014 

Service 
Manager - 
Housing 

Management 

1 Implemented. 

Following the issue of the Internal Audit report 
staff were reminded of the importance of fully 
completing all documents. 

Testing of a sample of five New Tenancy 
documents found them to be fully completed. 

3.4.2 On a monthly basis, a reconciliation should be 
undertaken by an independent officer between 
the decorating allowances agreed (on the paper 
document), the electronic records held, the 
invoices passed for payment and the statement 
received from Argos. 

Any discrepancies should be investigated and 
rectification action taken where appropriate. 

Any missing information from the statements 
should be identified and specifically requested 
from Argos. 

Medium 3rd February 
2014 

Service 
Manager - 
Housing 

Management / 
Interim 

Manager - 
Housing 

Management 

1 Implemented. 

Each month when the invoice / statement from 
Argos is received, the card number and amount 
are checked to manual and electronic records 
held. 

This is evidenced by ticking the entry on the 
invoice / statement before approving it for 
payment. 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

8 

3.5 31.13/14 INFORMATION SECURITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (ISMS) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.5.1 Staff compliance with the Information Security 
Policy and other associated policies should be 
proactively monitored. 

As a suggested minimum, monitoring should 
include sample assessments of data transfers 
and routine audits covering; mobile computing 
devices, removable storage media, confidential 
waste disposal, adoption of clear desks; and 
locking PC screens when leaving a workstation 
unattended. 

Medium September 
2014 

ICT Service 
Manager 

1 Implemented. 

ICT Services have proactively carried out training 
for key staff from Team Leaders, Service 
Managers and Heads of Service. 

This was ‘back to basics’ training where data 
security and data protection issues were 
discussed. 

In addition, a similar exercise to staff within the 
Development Control area was carried out. 

NetConsent is used to deliver policies to staff, 
and the Data Protection policy is shortly due to be 
renewed. 

In addition, the ICT Manager has requested an 
advisory audit to look in more detail at handling of 
data. 

 

3.6 1.14/15 FOLLOW UP (MAY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.6.1 7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 

Agreed scheduled patrol routes should be drawn 
up by APCOA and reviewed and agreed by the 
Council. 

Spot checks should be undertaken by Council 
staff to ensure APCOA are complying with the 
agreement. 

Medium Ongoing Team Leader 
- Operations 

3 Not Implemented. 

No formal documentation has been provided 
confirming the APCOA routes. 

Review of APCOA invoices for July, August and 
September 2014, identified that the Council is still 
not receiving the 69 hours of service contracted 
for. 

Recommendation restated. 

3.6.2 27.13/14 Consultation and Communications - 
Stakeholder Contact 

The draft Social Media Policy should be finalised, 
submitted to Cabinet / Council for approval, and 

Medium June 2014 Reputation, 
Communicatio

n & 
Consultation 

1 Implemented. 

The Social Media Policy has now been finalised 
and is available to all staff on the Intranet. 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

9 

3.6 1.14/15 FOLLOW UP (MAY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

once approved, it should be issued to every 
member of staff. 

Service 
Manager 

3.6.3 29.13/14 Follow Up 

31.12/13 Flexible Working Arrangements 

The People & Organisational Development Team 
should develop a record of the sample checks 
undertaken that includes the: 

· Employee selected and department. 

· Date of check. 

· Officer carrying out the check. 

· Result of the check. 

Medium May 2014 People & 
Organisational 
Development 

Service 
Manager 

1 Implemented. 

It was confirmed that a monthly spreadsheet is 
created to record which employees’ flexitime 
records have been checked. 

3.6.4 29.13/14 Follow Up 

32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and Training 

Planning Department 

Management should appraise their training and 
awareness requirements for Information / Data 
Security and ensure that all members of staff 
receive a relevant level of training for their use of 
IT and role in the organisation in relation to 
information handling. 

There should be a comprehensive approach for 
all members of staff commencing with a 
mandatory induction session and a periodic 
refresher training session which covers 
information and data security. 

Corporate Level 

Management should also create a single 
repository containing training attendance records 
for all staff at the Council. 

Medium September 
2014 

Planning 
Policy & 

Partnerships 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Staff in the Planning Department have received 
training of Information and Data Security. 

HR maintains records of training received by 
each member of staff. 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

10 

3.6 1.14/15 FOLLOW UP (MAY 2014) FINDINGS 

Ref Original Recommendation Original 
Category 

Original 
Impl’n Date 

Manager 
Responsible 

Status Comments / Implications / Recommendations 

3.6.5 29.13/14 Follow Up 

32.12/13 Data Security - Policy and Training 

Management should implement stronger logical 
security controls within the APAS system. These 
should reflect the settings of other systems in use 
at the Council. 

Medium July 2014 Planning 
Policy & 

Partnerships 
Service 

Manager 

1 Implemented. 

Review of the password policy on APAS found 
that access logical controls are now set as 
follows: 

· Password minimum length of 8 characters. 

· Password must include letters and 
numbers. 

· The last 5 passwords cannot be reused. 

· Passwords expire after 90 days. 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

11 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made 
The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing recommendations. 

This opinion relates solely to the implementation of those recommendations followed up and not does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment. 

Progress in 
implementing 

recommendations 

Overall number of 
recommendations 
fully implemented 

Consideration of high 
recommendations 

Consideration of medium 
recommendations 

Consideration of low 
recommendations 

Good 75% + None outstanding. None outstanding. 
All low recommendations outstanding 

are in the process of being 
implemented. 

Adequate 51 - 75% None outstanding. 
75% of medium recommendations 
made are in the process of being 

implemented. 

75% of low recommendations made are 
in the process of being implemented. 

Little 30 - 50% 
All high recommendations outstanding 

are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of medium recommendations 
made are in the process of being 

implemented. 

50% of low recommendations made are 
in the process of being implemented. 

Poor < 30% 
Unsatisfactory progress has been made 

to implement high recommendations. 

Unsatisfactory progress has been made 
to implement medium 

recommendations. 

Unsatisfactory progress has been made 
to implement low recommendations. 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

12 

Appendix B: Data to Support our Opinion 

Implementation Status by Review 

Review 
Total No. 
of recs 
agreed. 

Status of Recommendation Audit work 
confirmed as 

completed or no 
longer 

necessary 

No of recs 
carried forward 
for follow up at 

next review 

Not due for 
implementation 

Implemented 
Implementation 

Ongoing 
Not Implemented Superseded 

(5) (1) (2) (3) (4) (1)+(4) (2)+(3)+(5) 

16.13/14 Planning 3 0 1 2 0 0 1 2 

21.13/14 Members 
Allowances and 
Expenses 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

23.13/14 Leases 2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 

30.13/14 Allocations 
and Lettings 
(including Void 
Management) 

2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 

31.13/14 Information 
Security 
Management 
System (ISMS) 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

1.14/15 Follow Up 
(May 2014) 

5 0 4 0 1 0 4 1 

Total 
14 0 11 2 1 0 11 3 

100% 0% 79% 14% 7% 0% 79% 21% 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

13 

Implementation Status of Recommendations by Category 

Recommendation 
Category 

Total No. 
of recs 
agreed. 

Status of Recommendation Audit work 
confirmed as 

completed or no 
longer 

necessary 

No of recs 
carried forward 
for follow up at 

next review 

Not due for 
implementation 

Implemented 
Implementation 

Ongoing 
Not Implemented Superseded 

(5) (1) (2) (3) (4) (1)+(4) (2)+(3)+(5) 

High 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Medium 14 0 11 2 1 0 11 3 

Total 
14 0 11 2 1 0 11 3 

100% 0% 79% 14% 7% 0% 79% 21% 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

14 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness 

2013/14 Reports Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Recommendations 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference 

Agreed To Be 
Followed Up 

Not To Be 
Followed Up 

By IA 

1.13/14 Pool Cars 7 4 3 29.13/14 

2.13/14 Follow Up 1 1  29.13/14 

3.13/14 Corporate Governance 2 0 2 29.13/14 

4.13/14 Code of Conduct and Register of 
Interests 

1 0 1 29.13/14 

5.13/14 Fleet Management 6 3 3 29.13/14 

6.13/14 Disabled Facilities Grants 1 0 1 29.13/14 

7.13/14 Car Parks (Enforcement) 7 4 3 1.14/15 

8.13/14 Income Collection 3 0 3 29.13/14 

9.13/14 Leisure Management Contract 4 3 1 1.14/15 

10.13/14 Waste and Recycling 6 4 2 29.13/14 

11.13/14 Reactive Repairs and Maintenance 5 1 4 1.14/15 

12.13/14 Stamford Car Parking Income 0 0 (Advisory)  1.14/15 

13.13/14 Licensing 0 0  1.14/15 

14.13/14 Follow Up 5 5  1.14/15 

15.13/14 Payroll & Expenses 1 1  1.14/15 

16.13/14 Planning 6 3 3 This Review 

17.13/14 Bourne Community Access Point 4 2 2 1.14/15 

18.13/14 Investigation - Council Vehicle Usage 0 0 (Advisory)  1.14/15 

19.13/14 Staff Engagement and Communication 6 0 (Advisory) 6 This Review 

20.13/14 Absence Management 2 1 1 1.14/15 

21.13/14 Members Allowances and Expenses  8 1 7 This Review 

22.13/14 Benefits Fraud Investigation Unit 4 1 3 1.14/15 

23.13/14 Leases 5 2 3 This Review 

24.13/14 Treasury Management 1 0 1 1.14/15 

25.13/14 Risk Management 0 0  1.14/15 

26.13/14 Economic Development 3 2 1 1.14/15 

27.13/14 Consultation and Communications - 
Stakeholder Contact 

4 1 3 1.14/15 

28.13/14 Medium Term Financial Strategy 1 0 1 1.14/15 

29.13/14 Follow Up (January 2014) 13 13  1.14/15 

30.13/14 Allocations and Lettings 3 2 1 This Review 

31.13/14 Information Security Management 
System (ISMS) 

2 1 1 This Review 

 



South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 
14.14/15 

 

15 

2014/15 Reports Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Recommendations 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference 

Agreed To Be 
Followed Up 

Not To Be 
Followed Up 

By IA 

1.14/15 Follow Up (Payroll & Expenses) 1 1  7.14/15 

1.14/15 Follow Up (Car Park Enforcement / 
Consultation & Communication / Flexible Working 
Arrangements / Data Security) 

6 5 1 This Review 

2014/15 Reports To Be Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Recommendations 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference 

Agreed To Be 
Followed Up 

Not To Be 
Followed Up 

By IA 

1.14/15 Follow Up (Land Charges / Cash & 
Banking / ) 

3 3  N/A 

2.14/15 Data Protection 6 2 4 N/A 

3.14/15 Purchase Orders and Creditors 4 1 3 N/A 

4.14/15 Planning Enforcement 4 2 2 N/A 

5.14/15 Council Tax 2 0 2 N/A 

6.14/15 NNDR 2 0 2 N/A 

7.14/15 Payroll & Expenses 3 1 2 N/A 

8.14/15 Corporate Governance 0 0 0 N/A 

9.14/15 Waste and Recycling - Inventory Stock 10 5 5 N/A 

10.14/15 Pool Cars 5 1 4 N/A 

11.14/15 Planned Cyclical Maintenance & Capital 
Programme 

Only at Draft Stage N/A 

12.14/15 Income and Debtors Only at Draft Stage N/A 

13.14/15 Section 106 Agreements Only at Draft Stage N/A 

 



 Page 1

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF:   HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO:  HOF 297 
 
DATE:      4th December 2014 
 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Activity 2014/15 – Mid Year Review and 
amendments to Strategy 

KEY DECISION  
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

None 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Councillor Mike Taylor 
Resources and Assets Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT 
OFFICER: 

Amy Oliver, Senior Financial Accountant   
01476 406208 
Email: a.oliver@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

INITIAL 
IMPACT 
ANALYSIS: 
 
 
Equality and 
Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in paragraph 
(7) below: 
 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 
 
No 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  Democracy 
link on the Council’s website: www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 
 

http://moderngovsvr/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=2986&Ver=4 
 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 

 
Members are asked to note the mid-year activity position of 2014-15 (April 2014 to 
September 2014) and approve the amendments to the Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2014/15.  

 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
Treasury Management is the term used to cover the Council's borrowing and 
investment strategies.  The Council has formally adopted the key recommendations of 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
for Treasury Management in the Public Services.  In line with the Code the Council 

Agenda Item 8



 Page 2

has adopted a treasury management policy statement that requires regular reports on 
treasury and debt management operations during the financial year. 
 
Additionally, under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council is required to 
have regard to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance including the setting of 
Prudential Indicators.  Relevant treasury management indicators were incorporated 
into the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 approved by Council on 14th January 
2014. 
 
This report is submitted in accordance with these requirements and provides a review 
of treasury management for the period ended 30 September 2014 and reviews current 
developments.  
 
The CIPFA Treasury Management Panel promotes the view that Council’s monitor 
performance at least half yearly. In addition to this, a report by the Audit Commission 
entitled ‘Risk and Return’ identifies the need for Local Authorities to report regular to 
members in addition to the annual review. 
 
 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT  

 
This report sets out the following for the 6 month period from 1 April to 30 September 
2014: 
 
a. A review of debt management operations; 
 
b. A review of investment operations; 
 
c. A summary of interest rate movement and investment performance; and 
 
d. An update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indictors. 
 
 

 
DEBT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS 
 
Long Term Borrowing 
 
No additional long term borrowing was required during Quarter 2.  All Council 
borrowing is with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB).  The average rate of interest 
paid on the debt portfolio was 2.89%.  Appendix A is a schedule of loans outstanding 
as at 30 September 2014. At the point in time when some of the PWLB loans were 
taken these do appear high in the context of today’s interest rates.  The overall 
average is greatly reduced following the HRA self financing arrangements which was 
taken at a much lower rate.  Regular reviews are undertaken to review redemption 
costs of natural maturity against new borrowing to settle the outstanding debt early.  
Currently, it is not cost effective to settle early but the position continues to be 
reviewed in conjunction with our Treasury Management advisors.  As part of borrowing 
requirements around the HRA self financing proposals the Council has created two 
separate debt portfolios which apportions the existing debt above between the General 
Fund and HRA.   
 



 Page 3

Short-Term/Temporary Borrowing 
 
This can be defined as borrowing which is due to be repaid within 364 days.  The next 
loan to mature is in May 2015 to the value of £0.500m.  
 
INVESTMENT OPERATIONS 
 
The average size of the investment portfolio for the 6 month period was £42.0 million 
compared to an average portfolio size of £38.4 million during the same period in 
2013/14.  These cash balances are used for investment, which include balance sheet 
reserves and provisions, unapplied capital receipts and grants and also cash arising 
from the timing of large receipts and payments. 
 
 
Investment Activity in the period ended 30 September 2014 
 
The Council operates a diverse portfolio and uses a number of methods to invest its 
reserves which include direct deposit, certificate of deposits, notice accounts and 
money market funds. A schedule of investments at 30 September 2014 can be found 
at Appendix B. 
 
As at 30 September 2014 the Council held short term investments of £38.078 million, 
and £4 million long term investment.  The Treasury Management Strategy stipulates 
that the Council should hold not more than 25% of investments as long term and this 
was adhered during the first half of 2014/15. 
 
Short Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30 September 2014 no further short 
term fixed deposits were made, however, 6 month notice deals were taken on 2 
occasions for £4 million, a certificate of deposit was taken on one occasion for £2m 
 
Long Term Certificate of Deposit – In the period 30 September 2014 one certificate of 
deposit was made for £4m.  
 
Service Investments – In July 2012 a fixed rate deposit of £1 million was placed with 
Lloyds TSB for a period of 5 years at 3.79% for the Local Authority Mortgage scheme 
(LAMS). As at 30th September 2014, 46 loans have been completed with an indemnity 
amount of £925,596. At the Council meeting in July 2013 a further £1M was approved 
to support a second LAMs scheme.  A long with this the maximum loan size per 
application was increased to £147,250 in order to increase the take up of the scheme 
in the PE9 area. As at the 30 September 2014 2 loans have completed for scheme 2  
with an indemnity amount of £204,258 with a further 6 offers being made but not yet 
completed.  
 
Economic Background 
 

In the UK, the overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster 
through the initial threshold of 7%, set by the MPC late August, before it said it would 
consider any increases in Bank Rate. The MPC has, therefore, broadened its forward 
guidance by adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of 
about eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the 
economy and how quickly slack is being used up.  Most economic forecasters are 



 Page 4

expecting growth to peak in 2014 and then to ease off a little, though still remaining 
strong, in 2015 and 2016. Unemployment is expected to keep on its downward trend 
and return to pay increases at some point during the next three years.  

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.2% in 
September, the lowest rate since 2009.  Forward indications are that inflation is likely 
to fall further in 2014 to possibly 1%. Overall, markets are expecting that the MPC will 
be cautious in raising Bank Rate as it will want to protect heavily indebted consumers 
from too early an increase in Bank Rate at a time when inflationary pressures are also 
weak.  A first increase in Bank Rate is therefore expected in  Q2 2015 and forecasters 
expect increases after that to be at a slow pace to lower levels than prevailed before 
2008 as increases in Bank Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily indebted 
consumers than they did before 2008.  

Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 2013.  
However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major issues could return 
in respect of any countries that do not dynamically address fundamental issues of low 
growth, international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the 
economy, (as Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that 
levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise for some countries. 
This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have not disappeared but, rather, have 
only been postponed.  

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS 
 
Prudential Code indicators specific to treasury management are designed to ensure 
that treasury management is carried out in accordance with professional practice.  
Indicators for 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 were approved by Council in January 
2014 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15. 
 
The 2014/15 indicators and actual figures for the 6 months to 30 September 2014 are 
set out at Appendix C.  All investment activity has been maintained within the indicator 
limits. 
 
4.  AMENDMENT TO TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15 
 
The Treasury Management Officer will use the Capita Credit Rating weekly listing as a 
tool for guidance, with the option to deviate from this guidance only when there are 
clear alternative options that are available to the Council.  Any decision of this nature 
should be clearly documented for audit purposes.  
 
The current investment strategy does not allow the Council to undertake lending to 
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs).  A scheme is proposed to provide an available 
source of funding for this sector to encourage the provision of social housing within the 
District. Charging interest at market rates would also increase the Council’s investment 
income over the period of the loan. 
 
The scheme would lend amounts up to £5m per investment to Registered Social 
Landlords for the purpose of providing housing within the District. Repayment terms of 
up to 10 years would be offered. 
 



 Page 5

Individual Housing Associations do not have credit ratings and it is proposed that we 
use our external treasury advisers to undertake due diligence checks to assess 
borrowers’ ability to make good the repayment of the loan.  
 
Loans would be secured by means of a legal charge over the borrowers assets. 
Related legal costs and loan set up fees would be charged to the borrower. 
 
Interest rates charged would be set at PWLB/market rates available at the time the 
loan is agreed.  This will provide an investment return and ensure that no gratuitous 
benefit is included which would have soft loan or state aid implications. 
 
For accounting purposes loans would be treated as capital expenditure and financed 
from internal borrowing. This will increase the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
by the amount of the loan and then this will be written down upon repayment of the 
principal. This approach means that there is no requirement to make a Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) contribution which would be a charge to the working 
balances, therefore avoiding any additional cost to the tax payer. 
 
 
5. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The Committee could consider an alternative option of retaining the strategy in its 
current format and not include the amendments as presented. 
 
6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report provides details of the opportunities for Council financial investments. 
 
7. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA 
         QUALITY) 
 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Financial risk Legal charge, due diligence checks 
for proposed RSL lending 

  

 
 
8. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ANALYSIS 
 
None 
 
9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 
10. COMMENTS OF FINANCAL SERVICES 
 
The financial implications are laid out in the main body of the report. The detail 
presented is in line with best practice and current guidance. 
 
 



 Page 6

 
 
 
11. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES   

 
This report provides details of the Council’s performance in respect of treasury 
management against the policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.  
Members should note the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist the role 
of the Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury Management 
strategy.  
 
 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 
 
None 
 
 
13. APPENDICES: 
 
A – Debt Maturity Analysis 
B – Investment Maturity Analysis 
C – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 
 



 Page 7

APPENDIX A 
 
 

Debt Maturity Analysis 
 

Public Works Loan Board 
 
 

Maturing within  At 30 Sept 2014 Interest rate Maturity Date 

   £  %   

        

Under 12 months 500,000.00 10.875 09-May-15 

        

12 months to 2 
years nil 0.00 

         

2 to 5 years 500,000.00 9.000 09-May-17 

  500,000.00 9.125 09-Nov-17 

        

5 to 10 years 25,000,000.00 1.990 27-Mar-20 

  
         

Over 10 years 88,597,666.00 3.030 28-Mar-42 

        

Total 

      

115,097,666.00 2.8905 (average rate) 

 



 Page 8

 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

Investment Maturity Analysis 
 

Schedule of Managed Cash Funds 
 
 

 
  As at 30 Sept 2014 Average interest rate 

  £ % 

      

Short term investment     

      

Natwest SIBA nil 0.800 

NatWest 95 Day Notice 

Santander 95 Day Notice 
Goldman Sachs 6 Month 

Notice  

4,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 
4,000,000.00 

0.350 

0.600 
0.705 

      

      

    

Federated Prime Rate MMF Nil variable 

Insight £ LQF Nil variable 

Ignis Liquidity Funds 5,000,000.00 variable 

BNP Paribas MMF 2,078,000.00 variable 

Certificates Of Deposit 2,000,000.00 1.000 

Short term Investment 
Lloyds Bank  

12,000,000.00 
7,000,000.00 

0.620 
0.950 

      

      

Long term investment     

     

Certificates of Deposit  4,000,000.00 1.75 

      

      

Total           42,078,000.00                             0.83  

      

      

Service Investment     

      

Lloyds TSB - LAMS 2,000,000.00 3.320 



 Page 9

APPENDIX C 
 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS 
 
Treasury Management Prudential Indicators and Limits on Activity for South Kesteven 
District Council. 
 
Treasury Management Indicators – Comparison for 2013/14 estimate to actual position 
for the 6months to 30 September 2014. 
 
Maturity Structure of borrowing – upper and lower limits 
 
Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a 
percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate 

 
 

Upper Limit 
% 

Actual Limit 

% 

Under 12 months 
 

40 0.43 

12 months and within 24 months 40 0.00 

24 months and within 5 years 100 0.87 

5 years and within 10 years 100 21.7 

10 years and above 100 76.9 

 
Maturity structure of borrowing – these gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.   
 
Total principal finds invested for greater than 364 days.  These limits are set to reduce 
the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of 
investments after each year-end. 
 
External debt indicators 
 
Authorised limit for external debt 
 

  2013-14 Actual To date 

£’000 £’000 

Borrowing 136,430 128,104 

      

Other long term liabilities 0 0 

Total 136,430 128,104 

 
The authorised limit – this represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, 
while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable.  It is the 
expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements.  
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. 



 Page 10

Operational boundary for external debt 
 

  2013-14 Actual To date 

£’000 £’000 

Borrowing 120,969 128,104 

     

Other long term liabilities 0 0 

Total 120,969 128,104 

 
The operational boundary – this indicator is based on the probable external debt 
during the course of the year; it is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around 
this boundary for short times during the year.  It should act as an indicator to ensure 
the authorised limit is not breached. 



1 
 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 
 

REPORT OF:  HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO.:  HOF304 
 
DATE:   4 December 2014 
 
TITLE: 
 

Statement of Accounts – Proposed changes  

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Cllr Paul Carpenter  
Governance and Communication Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles, Head of Finance  
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
01476 406210 

INITIAL IMPACT 
ANALYSIS: 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below: 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: N/A 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Committee review the contents of the report and provide 
feedback on its contents. 
 
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
This report is to highlight the issues that may be forthcoming following a recent Local 
Audit consultation that was undertaken by Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) that included a proposal to reduce the timeframe for the 
production of the annual statement of accounts by changing the statutory deadline to 
31st May from 30th June in each year.  This change, if implemented, would take effect 
from the 2017/18 accounts onwards.  This report identifies the fundamental review that 

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

would be required to ensure the earlier deadline is be achievable if the change is 
introduced. 
 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2011, which those regulations require to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily comprise the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and Service 
Reporting Code of Practice, supported by the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). 
 

Under current arrangements the deadline for completing a draft Statement of Accounts 
is the 30th June of each year and the proposed changes would see a reduction in the 
timeframe of a month bringing it forward to the 31st May.  The signing and publishing of 
the accounts would also be brought forward to the 31st July in each year.  To achieve 
this reduction in deadline the Council would need to review the closedown process in 
order to meet the challenge.  In anticipation of the change being introduced it is 
suggested that changes are introduced for the closedown 2014/15 in order to gain 
some early learning.   
 
The consultation acknowledges the challenge that will be faced by authorities and also 
the pressure it would place on the external audit inspection regime.  However CLG is 
of the opinion that the proposed change is in line with Government policy to improve 
local government accountability to the public.  The Government has acknowledged the 
complexity and length or local authority statements and are working with the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) to support local initiatives to 
simplify accounts and make them easier for stakeholders to read and understand.  
 

For the Council there will be key areas of the closedown process to be reviewed and 
greater corporate involvement will be required in order to ensure a reduced deadline is 
met.  In parallel with the review the opportunity is being taken to simplify the statements 
(where possible) whilst still meeting the required standards and needs of our 
stakeholders. 
 
 The following areas are suggested as potential areas that will be reviewed: 
 

• Review of materiality thresholds – information is classified as ‘material’ if 
omitting it or misstating it could influence decisions that users make on the basis 
of financial information about a specific reporting authority.  Materiality can be 
both in monetary terms and/or nature.  A materiality threshold review may allow 
the number of supporting notes to be reduced or eliminated where it is deemed 
that the note is of little value to the reader   An upward change to the threshold 
would assist in streamlining and simplifying the accounts as well as reducing 
timeframes in key areas such as accruals and provisions.    

 

• Use of Estimates - in the preparation of financial statements where precise 
amounts cannot be established then estimates are used.  An example of an 
estimate currently included in the Statement of Accounts is the provision for bad 
debts.  At the time of preparing the accounts, we will be unable to identify an 



3 
 

exact figure for bad debts so will estimate, based on past experience & current 
knowledge.  Increasing the use of estimates may help with reducing timeframes.  
But this will need to be carefully balanced with ensuring the information provided 
still gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council. 
 

• Resourcing – currently the Council prepares the statement of accounts with 
resources held in the Accountancy Department.  But with reduced deadlines the 
resourcing of this process is an area that will need to be reviewed to ensure 
there is adequate capacity during the closedown period.  

 
To enable the Council to be prepared for the proposed change to the timetable it is 
important to have engagement from the following parties; 
 

• Governance and Audit Committee – it is important Governance and Audit are 
fully involved in this process and any changes will be bought to committee when 
required.  

 

• External Audit – engagement with external audit at early stage on potential 
changes will be essential.  As it is important to ensure audit timescales are kept 
to minimal level as well as the demand on resources within the Council. 

 

• Internal Stakeholders – it will be important internal stakeholders are fully 
involved in the process to ensure that shorter deadlines are achievable and 
met.  Internal stakeholders provide various amounts of information for the 
closedown process for example the closure of service account areas and the 
providing of relevant information in a timely manner such as  outstanding 
annual leave for a service area.   

 
 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
N/A 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
The report highlights impact on resources within the document.  
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION  
 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Failure to meet statutory 
deadline and/or qualification 
of statement of accounts 

The actions to mitigate these risks 
are detailed in the report 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ANALYSIS 
 
N/a 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 
9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 
9.1 These are included in the report. 
 
 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
10.1 The Council will need to ensure that any changes to statutory deadlines are fully 

complied with.  The proposed actions contained in this report will help ensure 
this is achieved. 

 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

 
N/A 
 
12. APPENDIX 
  



 Page 1

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF: HEAD OF FINANCE  
 
REPORT NO:  HOF302 
 
DATE:      4 December 2014 
 

TITLE: 
 

Risk Management Update – Corporate Risk Register 

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

None 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Councillor Paul Carpenter 
Governance and Communication Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles 
Head of Finance 
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk 
Tel: (01476) 406210 

INITIAL IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) 
below: 
 
N/A 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 
 
No 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 
 

HOF278 – Risk Management Annual Report 2013-14 and  
Corporate Risk Register update 
 
The above reports can be located by putting their 

reference number in the search section of the committee 
website via the link below: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.asp

x?bcr=1 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Governance & Audit Committee is requested to: 
 
i) note the contents of this report 
ii) review and approve the updated Corporate Risk Register as attached at 

Appendix A 
 
 

Agenda Item 10



 Page 2

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
One of the key areas for the Committee as part of its terms of reference is to monitor 
and review the risk management arrangements in place and activities that are being 
undertaken in order to mitigate those risks.     
 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
The Committee last reviewed the Corporate Risk Register at its meeting on 26 June 
2014.  In order to ensure the risk register is up to date and reflective of the current 
environment, a recent review has been undertaken in conjunction with Heads of 
Services to refresh existing risks to ensure they remain relevant and identify any other 
emerging risks.  Consideration and review of the Corporate Risk Register is 
undertaken at Management Team quarterly. The resulting and updated Corporate Risk 
Register can be found at Appendix A.  Whilst this hasn’t resulted in any new risks 
being included there is one risk that has resulted in a change: 
 

Reduction in staff morale due to organisational change – whilst the 
likelihood of “Possible” has remained the same, the impact has been 
increased to “Major” to reflect the current organisational redesign.  In 
order to help mitigate the impact, there has been a focus on improving 
internal communications including the development of the intranet and a 
revamped internal staff newsletter.  Officers from the People & 
Organisational Development team are supporting directly affected staff 
through the implementation of the changes.   An overall communications 
and cultural change programme is being implemented to support the 
redesign.  It is anticipated that this is a temporary risk and will be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis in order to mitigate any impact. 

 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ budget, 
people, land/property etc. 
 
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA 
          QUALITY) 
 
None 
 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
None 
 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 



 Page 3

 
9. COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
These are contained within the report. 
 
10. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
Members of the Committee are responsible on behalf of the Council for monitoring 
actions taken by Cabinet and Management Team to identify corporate business risks 
and assess whether they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept 
up to date with details of the risks and how they have been mitigated. 
 
11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER 
 
None 
 
12.     APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – December 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

1 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l A sustainable Medium 
Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) is not achieved 
 
Head of Finance 

• Changes to formula 

grant distribution 
methodology (Non 
Domestic Rate)  

• Localisation and 
introduction of Council 
Tax support  

• Collection rates being 
affected by welfare 
reform  

• Reduction in and ability 
to collect income due to 
the authority could 
compromise the delivery 
of council priorities  

• Scenario planning in order to 
model potential national 
changes   

• MTFP underpinning delivery of 
corporate plan in order to 
ensure priority actions are 
deliverable and affordable  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Updated MTFS for the next 5 years detailing 
actions in order to maintain a sustainable 
financial position  

2. Delivery of transformational programme 
with key actions aimed at ensuring annual 
balanced budget and medium term financial 
sustainability  

2 

P
a
r
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 

There is a loss of 
partnerships/Service 
Level Agreements 
(SLA’s), income or 
grant funding 

• Ongoing projects or 
priority plans which 
have a dependency on 
external financial 
support 

• Resource issues to 
deliver partnership 
driven projects or 
increase in financial 
pressures 

• Keep abreast of Government 
plans and ensure coordinated 
and managed approach  

• Ensure regular monitoring of 
SLA's, partnerships and 
funding  

• Ensure performance 
information is regularly 
monitored, reviewed and 
reported 

• Ensure effective 
communication and regular 
liaison with partners, funding 
bodies and staff etc  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 1. Develop and implement governance 
structure utilising Bridge toolkit 
methodology  

2. Regularly review performance and actions 
of partnerships and identify risks when 
necessary 

3 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 Failure to deliver 

against the Grantham 
Growth priorities 
 
Growth & Business Investment 

Manager 

• Economic uncertainty  
• No tradition as an 

office market location  
• Insufficient funding for 

public sector 
interventions  

• Failure to adequately 
plan for infrastructure 
required to deliver 
growth 

• Out-migration of 
businesses to alternative 
locations  

• Lost opportunity for 
inward investment and 
growth of indigenous 
companies  

• Loss of market share in 
retailing  

• Difficulty in selling 
Grantham as a retail 
destination to investors 

• Ensure key projects are 
realistically assessed having 
regard to funding and local 
economic/market factors  

• Lobby Central Government 
Policy makers 

• Ensure views of key partners 
and stakeholders are sought 
and formalised 

• Appropriate planning 
framework with proactive and 
managed programme of 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Bid for Public Sector funding where benefits 
of doing so are agreed 

2. Secure developer obligations to deliver 
appropriate infrastructure  

3. Continue investment in town centre  
4. Market opportunities for investment in 

Grantham 
5. Utilise SKDC assets to lead and/or catalyse 

investment in the district 
6. Support development of skills through 

formal agreements with Private sector 
developers 



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – December 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

and shoppers  

• Unemployment  
• Continued search for 

modern office market in 
the town centre  

• Town centre congestion  

implementation 
7. Progress Planning Policy Framework for 

South Kesteven to ensure that the right 
sites are available for growth/expansion  

8. Actively manage implementation of current 
policy framework  

4 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

Failure to identify and 
implement actions to 
support the community 
and businesses to 
minimise the effects of 
the economic 
downturn  
 
 

Strategic Lead for Economic 

Development & Regeneration  

• Economic uncertainty  
• Insufficient funding for 

public sector 
interventions 

• Unable to respond 
adequately to closure 
of businesses   

• Failure to respond 
positively to 
opportunities as they 
arise  

 

• Unemployment leading 
to increased cost 
pressures such as 
housing benefits  

• Breakdown of supply 
chain  

• Loss of revenue linked to 
proposed changes to 
NDR grant distribution 
methodology  

• Poor perception of the 
viability of the District as 
a place to do business 
and invest 

• Ensure the views of key 
partners and stakeholders are 
sought 

• Ensure the vibrancy of market 
towns through local economic 
initiatives 

• Ensure key actions and 
interventions of council and 
partners are effectively 
promoted and managed 

• Ensure appropriate support 
available to local business 
community and the Council 
itself 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Cultivate Business relationship management 
through Business Engagement Strategy and 
Action Plan 

2. Destination SK project scoped to attract 
inward investment and new business 

3. Delivery of Economic Development Strategy 
Action Plan 

4. Development of Cultural strategy 
5. Proposal to fund Business Support to 

replace loss of local Business Link capacity 
6. Enterprise Week 2014 

5 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

Failure to have robust 
plans and contingency 
arrangements in place 
to deal with the 
impacts of severe 
weather conditions or 
industrial action 

• Failure in provision of 
service 

• Staff shortages  
• Diminished service 

provision  
• Failure to meet 

customer's needs  
• Unable to respond to 

blue light services  

• Corporate Business Continuity 
Plan (BCP)  

• Service BCPs  
• Staff training and awareness  
• Emergency Plan 
• Extra guidance for industrial 

action circulated to key staff  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Ensure BCPs and emergency plans are 
regularly reviewed and updated 

2. Ensure action to be taken is clearly 
communicated to relevant staff and the 
local community  



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – December 2014           

            

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Type 

Risk 
(the risk is that...) 

Cause 
(... would cause the 

risk to occur) 

Consequences of 
uncontained risk 
(time, cost etc) 

Mitigation measures to 
reduce effect of risk 

I
m

p
a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 

R
is

k
 S

c
o

r
e
 

Actions 

6 

R
e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a
l 

(
I
n

te
rn

a
l)

 

Failure to recruit, and 
develop staff to meet 
changing customer 
demands and available 
resources 
 
Head of People, Projects & 

Performance 

• Failure to develop 
workforce strategy 
and inability to 
harness skills and 
development of key 
roles  

• Poor service delivery  
• Low staff morale  
• High turnover  
• Unmet customer 

expectations 

• Learning & Development Plan 
• People Strategy is now in place 
• Behavioural framework in 

place  
• Reward strategy being 

developed 
• Better understanding of 

customer needs 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Collation data to understand current and 
future customer needs 

2. Comprehensive People Strategy delivery 
plan in place to develop staff and harness 
skills across the organisation  

Reduction in staff 
morale due to 
organisational change  
 
Head of People, Projects & 

Performance 

• Failure to manage the 
communication and 
effective 
implementation of 
organisational change  

• Loss of capacity  
• Increased levels of stress 

and sickness  
• Reduced service delivery  
• Failure to deliver 

priorities  
• Industrial action  

• The Council has developed an 
“Unlocking Our Potential” 
culture change programme to 
incorporate leadership, 
management, customer focus 
and performance 
management/delivery  

• Cohesive creating a flexible 
organisation programme 
developed 

3
 M

a
jo

r 

2
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

6
 M

e
d

iu
m

 

1. Continue to embed the culture change 
programme as part of overall People 
Strategy  

2. Promote the flexible organisation 
programme and engage staff in its rollout 

7 

T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

Ability for ICT 
infrastructure and 
support systems to be 
adapted and 
configured in order to 
provide a resilient 
framework, specifically 
to meet the challenges 
of agile working and 
customer access 
strategy  
 
Head of Finance 

• Failure to implement 
and sustain a robust 
ICT infrastructure that 
is resilient and flexible 
enough to meet the 
challenge of the 
delivery of an agile 
workforce 

• Aging ICT hardware 
and network  

• Pressures on ICT 
platform causing 
difficulties to deliver 
quality services and 
creating an inflexible ICT 
infrastructure  

• ICT strategy setting out 
roadmap for development  

• Close linkages to corporate 
priorities 

• Review of service resourcing 
and opportunities for 
partnerships  

3
 M

a
jo

r 

1
 U

n
li
k
e
ly

 

3
 L

o
w

 1. ICT strategy approved and action being 
implemented 

2. ICT Steering Group meets regularly to 
monitor progress of actions introduced 

 

  



Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register – December 2014           

            

 



REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE  

 
REPORT OF: Environmental Health Service Manager 
 
REPORT NO:   ENV620  

 
DATE:   4 December 2014     
 

TITLE: 
 

Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report 2013-14 

SKDC WORKING SAFELY  
 

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

N/A  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

John Smith Portfolio Holder for Healthy Environment 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Price /Ian Yates  

INITIAL IMPACT 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below 
 N/A  

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council 
and  Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 
 

A copy of the annual report is attached as appendix 1 

 

Agenda Item 11



1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee review the 

attached Corporate Health & Safety Annual Report (“the Report”). 
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
2.1      The report sets out progress with the further development of corporate health 

and safety,  it confirms  ongoing improvements to existing good standards at 
the council,  it gives an over view of activity during the year and proposes 
actions for 2014 -15 to further develop health and safety and drive standards 
even higher.  

 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
3.1 The attached report is self explanatory but the main points are summarised 

as below:- 
 

• Management of health and safety. This confirms the shared 
responsibility for managing health and safety and the structures in place  
 

• Arrangements. This sets out the policies and procedures that are 
present to inform and guide employees 

 

• Focussed approach. Identifies specific actions with regard to Asbestos, 
Legionnaires Disease and Lone working  

 

• Training. Details the comprehensive schedule of training available and 
what has been undertaken 

 

• Accidents and Incidents. These are categorised and a reducing trend 
identified  

 

• Leisure centres. An audit of the leisure centres has been carried out and 
an action plan is currently being progressed  

 

• Waste and recycling. Specific actions are listed including additional 
capacity to focus on health and safety  

 

• Performance indicators. Performance is set out against the indicators  
 

• Plan for 2014 -15. This confirms an ongoing commitment across all 
areas of the council’s activity with due regard for  areas identified 
nationally by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and areas 
assessed as being of higher risk    

 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The annual plan provides an overview of progress, an assessment of current 

standards and sets out future actions. This document enables the council to 



confirm its commitment to high standards of health and safety that are 
articulated in the safety policy.     

 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 All resource implications are currently funded and budgeted for. 
 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION  
 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below: 

 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Failure to adequately 
manage Health and safety  
may result in prosecution, 
serious injury/illness and 
significant damage to the 
council’s reputation  

The annual report enables the 
aspirations in the council’s safety 
policy to be confirmed, the 
arrangements in place and the 
progress made.  

 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 As this is a report on mainly historic activity then an equality analysis is not 

needed. 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 N/A  
 
9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
9.1 Members are reminded that the terms of reference for the Governance and 

Audit Committee include the responsibility to review the annual report and the 
effectiveness of the Council’s health and safety arrangements. Risk 
management and health and safety are closely aligned and preventative 
actions and control measures should be regularly reviewed to ensure 
arrangements are operating effectively. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
10.1 The Committee has been given delegated authority by Council to review the 

annual report on the effectiveness of the Council’s Health & Safety 
arrangements. 

 
11.     APPENDIX:  Annual report for 2013-14  



1 

 

 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY  

SKDC WORKING SAFELY  

2013-2014 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Introduction 

Summary 

The report provides an annual update on the management of health and safety within South 

Kesteven District Council. The report summarises the progress made and actions taken 

during the past year in further improving corporate health and safety. It confirms that health 

and safety compliance is good and improving. It proposes actions for the forthcoming year 

that will build on existing high levels of compliance and drive standards even higher.  

How we manage health and safety 

The underlying principle directing corporate health and safety at the council is that it is a 

shared responsibility for everyone involved. All those associated with the council have an 

important part to play in ensuring the council works safely and provides a safe environment 

for the general public.  

Individual services deliver health and safety objectives within their daily work supported by a 

central corporate health and safety resource. Services are best placed to understand how 

they work and deliver their service. It is recognised that there are significant differences 

between the various services the council operates so a “one size fits all” approach is not 

always appropriate. But minimum standards of knowledge and understanding are expected 

within each service and underpin the management of health and safety. Advice and support 

is available to assist managers and others in meeting required standards. This model of 

placing responsibility for managing health and safety within the services delivering the work 

is empowering and ensures that there is clear and comprehensive understanding of the 

technical operation of the service so that health and safety needs can be incorporated and 

built in to service provision, thus aiding development of a strong health and safety culture 

within services. To underpin this, all service managers are required to be IOSH (Institute of 

Occupational Safety and Health) trained. 

Corporate health and safety arrangements  

Various policies and procedures guide the implementation of corporate health and safety 

across the council. These policies are reviewed on a regular basis and if legislation or 

circumstances dictate. A list of policies/procedures can be found in appendix 1. A key policy 

is the council’s health and safety policy which is required by law. The policy sets out and 

declares the council’s commitment to high standards as well as confirming the organisational 

structure and the arrangements in place to deliver these high standards. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

Focussed activity  

Previous priorities relating to Asbestos, Legionnaires Disease and Lone Working have 

received a specific focus during the year and policies and procedures have been amended 

to provide enhanced, robust controls.  

Themed control groups have been established to ensure: 

· Legionnaires Disease controls are in place at all relevant council premises and that 

any contracted work is adequately managed and monitored to minimise risks. That 

any required sampling is carried out. In particular, a risk matrix approach has been 

adopted to direct resources appropriately.  

 

· Asbestos is correctly managed and controlled in council premises and that risk is 

minimised, again using the risk matrix approach to appropriately direct resources.  

This approach is in line with the previously stated principle of empowering services to 

identify and manage risks in their service, thus building a robust and resilient health and 

safety culture. 

Lone worker procedures have been reviewed and amended to take account of recent 

technological advances, equipment now available and modern practices. Lone workers that 

have been deemed to be at risk of facing possible unacceptable behaviour have been 

issued with lone worker devices. These devices support other measures such as an exercise 

of caution list, location boards etc. The system in use is approved by ACPO (Association of 

Chief Police Officers) and any calls receive high priority from the police. Staff has been 

trained in the use of the devices. In addition to these measures a further programme of 

training is being undertaken to ensure all relevant staff, including lone workers, have 

received updated conflict management training. 

Training  

Training is essential to enable staff and others to operate safely. Training needs are 

identified in 121s, PDRS, within policies and procedures and following any audit reviews. E 

learning is used together with more traditional techniques. A detailed schedule of the 

comprehensive level of training carried out last year is shown in Appendix 2.  

Accident and incidents 

All services are responsible for recording any accidents or incidents within their service and 
investigating them. Revised procedures have been put in place through an accident and 
incident guide. All reports are centrally collated for statistical analysis, oversight and 
challenge.  The vast majority of these reports are not reportable to the health and safety 
executive and therefore of a less serious nature.  

Services are required to record, investigate and report accidents and incidents. Services are 
required to consider any actions that can be taken to minimise any recurrences. This 
approach helps to build a good culture and assists the council to adapt its operations in the 
light of experience and minimise risk going forward.  

 

The following indicates the numbers of these less serious accidents and incidents in various 
areas of the council.  



4 

 

   2012/13 2013/14 

Waste & Recycling 26 20 

Waste & Recycling 

(vehicle non injury) 

8 1 

Works Team 4 11 

Art Centres 15 18 

All Other Service 

Areas (see detailed 

breakdown of 

accidents  by service 

on page 9) 

57 47 

Total 110 97 

 

The above table does not include leisure centres but does include staff and the public.  

As can be seen there is a positive improving trend overall with various targeted actions or 

training programmes having a beneficial impact. Further analysis by common category type 

is undertaken and identifies no anomalies in the numbers of each as is appropriate to any 

organisation delivering such a wide range of services as a District Council.  This can be 

found in Appendix 3. 

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases, and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations  (RIDDOR)   

These regulations require the official reporting by the council of certain specified accidents, 

ill health and dangerous occurrences.  These accidents will often be of a more serious 

nature.  

The RIDDOR notification numbers are very similar to last year (4 in 2012/13 and 3 in 

2013/14) and are in line with what might be expected at a District Council of this size and 

complexity. All RIDDOR accidents have been comprehensively assessed to ensure 

corrective actions have been considered and implemented where possible.  

 

 

Leisure centres  

The leisure centres at Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and the Deepings are under contract to 

“1 Life” who has the operational responsibility for delivering health and safety both to the 

workforce and the customers using the facilities. Client monitoring arrangements are in place 

and any concerns identified are appropriately investigated. 

An audit of the health and safety arrangements at the four leisure centres has been 

undertaken which identified the need to make a small number of improvements. The issues 

raised (mainly around equipment and property) have been addressed as required and 

further improvements have been planned.  

An analysis of accidents by type for the leisure Centres is shown in Appendix 4 



5 

 

Waste and recycling (W&R)  

In last year’s report there was a specific commitment to a review at Waste and Recycling 

(W&R) arrangements for managing health and safety. The nature of the service is that there 

is an intrinsically higher hazard present due to the type of the work carried out. 

During the period a new post of health and safety monitoring and training officer and a new 

service manager were appointed. Staff in the service have undergone comprehensive health 

and safety training with “tool box talks” and many other initiatives being undertaken to drive 

up standards. The enhanced capacity at W&R and drive for higher standards is enabling a 

further significant shift in culture which in turn can be seen through the level of accidents and 

a significant shift in the recognition of such matters by the staff and management. This was 

also further supported by a significant shift in staff perceptions and culture in the vehicle 

maintenance workshop which is one of the most hazardous areas of the council’s activities.  

 

 

Performance Indicators  

A number of performance indicators are captured to assist in monitoring the effectiveness of 

our management of health and safety. Examples are shown below:  

Performance indicator 

 

2013/14 

outturn/comment 

10% reduction in all accidents within waste services 

 

38% reduction 

achieved  

% attendance at Corporate Health & Safety induction * within 6 

months **of appointment 

100% 

Number of  service managers and where relevant team leaders 

holding IOSH managing safety qualification  

48 (from 2005 to 

present) 

Requests for advice/service  from corporate health & safety team 108 

Number of RIDDOR notifications 3 

Number of employers liability claims 2 

* Note .... inductions at high concern areas such as street care are carried out prior to work activity 

commencing .  

**Note...inductions in lower concern areas are targeted to be achieved within 3 months, it is 

inevitable that sickness or other pressures  occasionally  delay lower concern inductions.  

Plan for 2014/15 

The work plan for 2014/15 has taken into account the areas of work activity proposed by the 

HSE for special focus in their Public Services Sector Strategy for 2012-2015 and any local 

areas prioritised for support. It recognises the considerable progress already made by the 

council and reflects the current reality. The result that is sought is to meet not only our legal 



6 

 

obligations for health and safety but to achieve high, exemplary standards of conduct in our 

business. Our response is not only to maintain existing efforts across all areas of the council, 

but to continue to focus on the higher concern areas of the council’s activity in line with 

where these are HSE special focus areas of work. These are the areas where the most 

significant accidents/incidents are more likely to occur and which present the greatest risk. 

Specific areas of focus will be  

· The council’s leisure centres - An audit of the centres has recently been 

concluded. This included a cultural survey for staff, to determine the level of 

ownership of health and safety policies and procedures at front line staff level.   

Processes for accident and incident reporting within the centres were also a key part 

of the audits. Any recommendations will be followed up and monitored via an action 

plan.   

· Events management - This is an ever increasing aspect of council activity and is 

specifically mentioned by the HSE for focussed approach especially around crowd 

control.  

· Waste and Recycling - To continue with supporting embedding of improved 

standards and culture across the service. Including a focus on any areas where 

further improvement can be made e.g. as identified by the cultural survey.  

· Asbestos - To continue implementing the Asbestos management policy and 

procedure and review its effectiveness. Specifically mentioned by the HSE for a 

focussed approach. 

· Legionnaire’s disease - To continue implementing the Legionnaires Disease 

management procedure and review its effectiveness. Specifically mentioned by the 

HSE for a focussed approach. 

· Gas servicing - To reassess the arrangements the council has in place.  Carbon 

monoxide poisoning is specifically mentioned by the HSE and we have our own 

housing stock and other properties where gas installations are in place..  

· Cultural survey - To further expand use of the survey into additional higher risk 

areas of activity such as Asbestos and Legionnaires disease and to resurvey some 

areas of council activity to confirm a positive culture is embedded and improving.   

· Service Specific Risk Assessments - To ensure all are in place and fit for purpose.  

· Review of policies and procedures - To carry out a review of any relevant existing 

policies and procedures including Fire precautions and falls from height. 

· Construction design and management (CDM) – ensure changes to the CDM 

regulations are appropriately taken into account for any new building related projects 

starting in April 2015 

· Employee resilience – continue the work to give people the tools to deal with the 

challenges of the working environment and associated changes. 

· Grounds maintenance – review partners health and safety management 

arrangements. 



7 

 

Appendix  1  

Policies and Procedures in place  

Name    Notes/ Scope etc  

 Health and Safety Policy  Overarching policy setting out the council’s 

commitment, organisational structure and 

arrangements to deliver good standards of 

health and safety.   

Risk Assessment manual and procedure  Generic corporate RAs issued in hard copy 

to all service managers as well as on 

Covalent.   Service specific RAs completed 

and on Covalent for all except one service 

area.  

Unacceptable behaviour Defines unacceptable behaviour and sets out 

the process for managing contact with 

individuals who  do this  

Lone workers Defines lone work and sets out what must be 

in place in various scenarios to protect the 

council’s staff. 

Contractors.. ..Managers guidance and 

evaluation procedure  

 Sets out process for assessing contractors 

so they meet council’s standards.  Recently 

supplemented with monitoring guidance for 

managers 

Blood borne viruses (guide for 

employees)  

Explains risks and sets out control measures 

to prevent and respond to any incidents.   

Bomb Threats and suspect  

packages/letters   

Details systems in place to protect staff and 

the council  

Accident and incident guide Details process for recording and 

investigating accidents and incidents  

Asbestos  management  Sets out arrangements to manage and 

prevent risks from asbestos  

Legionella management  Sets out arrangements to manage and 

prevent risks from Legionnaires Disease 

 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

Appendix 2 

Training  

Training in 2013/14  Provider No. of Attendees 

Health & Safety for 

Employees- mandatory 

induction for all levels of 

employees 

Corporate Health & Safety 81 

Workstation Safety Plus – e-

learning & assessment 

programme – mandatory for 

all Display Screen 

Equipment (DSE) users 

Corporate Health & 

Safety/Cardinus 

53 

Fire Safety Plus for all staff 

e-learning package 

Corporate H&S/Cardinus 67 

Fire Safety for Fire Check 

Staff 

Chubb 13 

Asbestos Awareness UKASL 3 

Work with non licensed 

Asbestos – specific to works 

operatives & project officers 

– new/refresher 

Jason Borley – Global 

Environmental Consultancy  

71 

P402 (Refresher) – Buildings 

Surveys and Bulk Sampling 

for Asbestos  

(including Risk Assessment 

and Risk Management 

Strategies) 

Triple A 1 

Legionella Awareness (1 hr) 

- operatives 

IWS 63 

Legionella Awareness (3 hrs) 

project officers, EH officers, 

Building control 

IWS 26 

Lone Worker Device Training Reliance/Corp Health & 

Safety  

51 

IOSH – Managing Risk for 

municipal managers  

Jardine Lloyd Thompson 11 

First Aid at Work Certificate – 

3 day – either to fulfil site or 

job role needs  

British Red Cross 2 

First Aid – refresher training 

to maintain the first aid at 

work certificate  

British Red Cross  6 

First Aid – 1 day  British Red Cross  18 

 



9 

 

 

Appendix 3 

The following chart shows the type of these less serious accidents by common categories for 

2013-14 (excluding leisure centres)  

 

 

The types of accident are not unusual within a diverse work environment such as the district 

council. The figures include members of the public and the slip/fall/same level category 

remains the largest and is associated with public areas such as art centres, parks, and 

public open spaces.  

These are non RIDDOR reportable and hence less serious accidents. They have been 

investigated and, where possible, actions taken to reduce the risk of recurrence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 

 

 

Appendix 4 

This chart indicates the type and number of accidents (these are non RIDDOR and hence 

lower seriousness) occurring at the Leisure centres. All accidents are investigated and 

where possible action taken to minimise a recurrence.  These numbers and types of 

accidents are not unusual in such settings. 

 

 


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2014
	6 Annual Audit Letter 2013/14
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report and Follow-up Report
	Progress Report - December 2014 SKDC
	Follow Up 14.14.15 FINAL SKDC

	8 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review
	9 Statement of Accounts - proposed changes
	10 Corporate Risk Register
	HOF302AppendixACorporateRiskRegister

	11 Health and Safety Annual Report 2013/14
	Corp HSW  Annual Report 2014Final


